
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 
 
Date: Thursday, 31 January 2013 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 

pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2012. 

 
3. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
4. HESPE ACTION PLAN UPDATE  
 
 Verbal report 

 
5. GRANT THORNTON CERTIFICATION WORK REPORT 2011/2012 

(Pages 15 - 26) 
 
6. GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 27 - 32) 
 
7. GIFTS HOSPITALITY AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 
 Verbal report 

 
8. INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 33 - 38) 
 

Public Document Pack



9. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 1)  

 
10. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION – That in accordance with section 100A (4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of business, on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined by the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to that Act. The public interest test has been applied and 
favours exclusion. 
 

11. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 2)  

 
 
 



������������	
������������������
�

��������	
��������	��	�
�

������� ����������� �����������������
�
� ������������  � ����

!�"��#�����
$%�!����
�

&�'���(��
��)����
 ����������
�

 *������ ������������ &����������+��*�����,��-�.����
��&���������+��*�����,���/������
�

+������������ ����������� �� �����
�

��
�

�
0�� ����	�����������������������������	��������	���

�
������ 1�� ��(�� ��� �������� 1����� ���� ���� ���� ����������� *��������
�������� ���2��� ���� ����� ������� ������� ��� ���������� 1���� ���� ������� ��� �����
�#����������,���������������������������1��������1�3�
�
��������������������1�����3�
�

0	� �����	��
�
��������� �� ����� ���� � !"���� �#� ���� ���� !$� ����� �!� %&� 	�'���(�)� *+%*,� (��
�'')����-�
�

00� .��./�0	��������������	�1��	�
����������/��������������������������2�����
�
'���������������	����4�&*�����	��	���������,�-5������*���������!������
�����������������*�*���������*����������������������������������!�����
����������6�� ������� +������ $*���� ��+$��� )�#�1���� ���� -�#�����#� &������
��������� !1���� ���� ����#���� ����� 7� ���� 	��	3� 8�� �+$� ��������� 	��
����������������������#����������������������������������������1�������������
��� !������ ����� *�*���� ��� �,,����� ���� ��� �**����� ��� ��� ������� ��� �7�
9������ 	��	� ������� ��0� �,����� �����#� ��� ������� ��� ��� /�����2%.!�
+�*�������"����3�
�
+�� ��*���������������,���������� ����������� ��� �����,,�������� ������������
,���� ��� 1��������1���� ���  *���� ���,� -5������ ���,����� ����� ���� 1��� ��
���������#������#����1�����1��������1�������������,�-5�����3�)��������
�����������1��������1��#�1�����(���������������������������������*���������
1����,,�������������1������������������#����,����3��������,���������������
���� ��� �� *����� ��� ��� ���������� &������ ��� ��� ������������� �,� ��� ,,�����
*�,�����������#����������,��������������,����������������5*���������1�
�����+�������!���������������������������������*�����3�
�
!������ �,���� ��� �� �*��,��� ������������� ���������1������ ���!�����������
��������������������,�������������1��,�+�������!����������������������
����:��������1�������������������1������3�+����*��������+������ ��������,�
'�������*���������������1��,� ���,,���������,� +�������!����������:�������
��#��,������ ������� �,� ��������� *���������� 1��(� ���#� ������(��� ������ 1����
%���*����������������3�'����1��#�������������� ,������ �*����1�������*������ ���
��� �5�� ����#� �,� ��� ��������� 1���� �������������� ,��� �����6�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



�������������� ��� ������� ��1� ���� ��� ��*���� +������� !����� ��� /�����3� )�
1���������������������,�,��������������,���������������,���������#���#�
���13�
�
������������
�
3%4� ���������)�'�)���!���5� �!�2��!�(��!����-�
�
3*4� ������������ �6��#��!��)!����"� ��(��')���!�����������!�7������ !$��#�����

���� ����-�
�
384� �������#")���)�"'�����(��')���!�����������!�7������ !$��#��������� ����,�

 !� �)��)� #�)� ���(�)�� ��� ��! ��)� ����  �'����!��� �!� �#� ���� �5� �!� 2��!�
6 �� !������$)����� ���5����-�

�
0;� ���������������2�����

�
8�����,�+�������!�������*���������������������,����*�,��������,����+�������
!����� &������ ���� �*����� �*��� ������ ����� ���� ������ ,���� ��� ������ 1��(�
������(�������#� ������������#�*�������&*����� ���0��9������	��	3� +�������
!��������������������������������,,������*�����#�������������������������
������1��(����*�������������,�������������������������������������������3�)�
�������������������������,����������,����1��#��������������������1����������������
1����#��� ����� ���1��������**��*����� ��� �����������#��,��������������,���*������
������ ��� ���� �*���� ���� ����� ������� ��� 1����� ��� ,����� ,����� ��� ���� ����� �,� ����
������#� ,���� ������ 1��(� ���������� ���� ������ ������#� ����� �:����� �������� ��� ��
��(������������*�,���������,���������������������+�������!�����&����������
����*����� ���#� ������(�� ��� ��*���� ��� ,,�������� �,� ��� +������� !�����
&����3�
�
 ����#�������������#�*���������,����1��#�������,�����1������#������������������
�,����������������������,�,����1��*�������1��(�1�������������<����,�,������
�*����������������=��
�
���� �����������#�+��������������04�*�����
���� �������,�����������
���� !�����&������&������-�������������
���� )�#�1�����������������������������
���  !&&���������"��#������������07�*�����
�,�� +�,���������!������������.��������
�
)�*�������������������� +�*������������ ������������*�*���� ����������
�������,�����*������������������������������������#�����������,,�����������
,,���������,���������,��������������������������������3�)�������������������,�
��� (�� �������� �����,��� ��� ��� +�*������� ����� �������� ��� ���������� ����
������������� �,� ������ �����#����� ,��� ��� ������� �,� �������� ������ ������3�
&�#��,������ *��#���� ���� ����:������ ��� ���� ��� ����� ���� ���� �#�����
������1����%���*��������������������������������������)����,����+�������!�����
&����3�
�
��������������������)�'�)��(��!����-�
�

0>� ������������������*+%%9*+%*��
�
8�� !�������� ����#��� .����� 8�������� ?@�� *������ ��� !������ !����� %����
	���2	��	��1����� ���� ��� *�*���� *���������� ��� ���!���������������� ��������
!������3� +������������ ���������1��(�������(�� ,��� ���	���2	��	��������,�/������
��������� ��������#� ��� �������� ������� '���3� 8�� !������ .�������� $*����

Page 2



�!.$�� *������ ��� ��� ����� ����#� �,� ��� �������� �������� 		� ���� 	>� ��4�
&*�����	��	���,����������� ���,�����#���,� ����������,� ���	���2	��	�,���������
��������� ���� ���� �����#����� ,��� ������#� ����� ,�������3� &���:������� ���
 ��������!�����������=��
�
•� �����������:����,����*�������������������6��	���2	��	�,������������������

���	>�&*�����	��	A�
•� �������������������������������*����,���������#����������������*������

*���������#�	���2	��	�,���������#���������,,�����������,,�������� ���
��������,��������A�����

•� ����,������*�������,���������3�
�
!����#��,������������������������������������*�����������	��	2	��0��
���*���������������������������������������������1�(����������,������=��
�
•� ���)�#�1��������-�#�����#�&�������*����������*������������A�
•� ��*����,� ,��������� ���������������#���������,,�����������,,��������

����*��*�������#����A�
•� �����������#�������������#����A�
•� ��*����,�����������������������*�������#�,����������*���������������,�������,�

������3�
�
8����������������*�����*�������������������������������������������������
��*����1���������+�*�����������3�
�
���������������������!!"����"� �������)�*+%%9*+%*�(��!����-�
�

0
� �������������*+%*9*+%8��
�
8�� !��������  �������� .����� 8�������� ?@�� �������� ����� .����� 8�������� ?@�
%%����������**��������� ���!���������������������������� �������������� ,������
���������5��,����������������������������,����:��������,�5�����������������
1�������*�����������������������#��,��*���������(�����������**���������1�������
*��������������������3�)��*�������������!��������������������������*��*����
1��(� *��#��������� ����� �,� ,�� ,��� 	��	2	��0� ���� �� *������ ������� �,� ���
�������������!�����'� ,��� ����������� ���	��	2	��0�����#�1���� ������*�����
�����#��,����1��(�������������,�������������3�
�
���������������������"� �����������)�*+%*9*+%8�(��!����-�
�

0B� ���2�������	
�������	����������������
�
8�� +������  ������� �,� '������ �*����� �*��� *��#���� ���� ��� �������� ��� ���
��<������ ,��� ���*����� ���(� ���� ��������� ����#���� ���� ��� ������*����
����*����� ��� ��� �����#� ������3� )� �������� ����� �#����� �*���� �*�����
���#��� ��� ��**���� ��� $��(� ����#���� &����#�� ���� ��������� ��� ������,���
����#���� �,� ��� +�������� '���3�)�1���� �� *��*���� ����� ,��������������#�
�*�����1�����,�����*��������������������������(�3�
�
���������������')�$)����)�'�)�����!������ ��"���#�)�����!�7��'�) ��� !�)��'�5��
�#���)'�)����� �:��!���!�")�!5����!�$���!��(��!����-�
�

07� ������	������	�1��	�
��2����		����������	���������������2�	����������	��
�
'������ ��� ������ �>� ��4� &*����� 	��	��� ���  ������� �,� !����� &������ &������
*������ �� *��#���� �*���� ����� ���� ����� ��� *������ ��� ���)����� ����/���
"��#� 9����1� ���� &�������� �������� ������� 00� �>� ������� 	��	�� �,�����

Page 3



�#�����#�������������������(�������*������������������#������������������
�������������� *��������,�!�����&������&������� !&&����������"��#�����������
1�������������#������3�)��������������1���������1�����(��1��#�����������
���� ��� ���**�#� ,���� ��� ���#����� ����� *������ ,��� ���*������� ������ ����
5*���������1�������1���������1������#�������������������,������������
��� �� ��#�� *��������� ��� ������� *����� 1���� ����� ��*������� �,,����� ������� ��
*���������� ����� �������������������������� �,����� ���9����1�����&��������
��������3�
�
8��  ������� ��� ���� ��� ��5� ��#�� ���� ,��� ������ *�������� �������������� ���
�������� ���  !&&� �������� "��#��� ���� �� �*����� ����� ������ ���#�� ����� ,���
��*���������� ���� ��� ��� �����#� &*����� ���� 9������ 	��	�� 1�����
�*������ ��#��,������ ���**�#� ,���� ��� ���#����� ����� ��������3� &���:�������
 !&&� ���� ������(�� �� ������#�� ���1� �,� ��� ������ �������������� ���� ��
�������������*�����������*�������1��#����������������������������,���
���*�����3� +�� ��*���� ��� �������� ,���� ������� ���  ������� ��(��1��#��
�����������**�#������,���1����������*����3�&�#��,������1��(��������������(��
�������������������������������������������������������������*���3�
�
��������������������)�'�)��(��!������!��"'�����)�'�)���(��')���!�������#"�")��
���� !$���#��������� �������� !#�)���#�5��'� �!5��6 ��������5� �!�'��!-�
�

04� �������������������2������	���������������	��
�
'������ ��� ������ �>� ��4� &*����� 	��	��� ���  *����  ������� �,� �������6��
&������ *������ �� *��#���� �*���� ��� ��,���� �,� ��� �������� ��(�� ��� ������� ��
�������,�1�(����� �����,��� �������������,��C� ������������#6��*��������
,����������#�����,����������3�8�� ������������������������������������
�����,��� ���� ��� ���� ��� �������� ����� ���� ��� ���� 1�� ���#� ��(�� ��� �����
���*������1���������������������������1�������#�����������3�
�
+�� ��*���� ����������� ,������������� ���������� ����������������*��� ���
������� ������ ���� ���*��,�� ������ ����#����� ���  *����  ������� ���������
����� ��� ����#�� ,��� ������� ����� ������ �� ���1�3� )�1���� ���� *��*����
����#��#��������1�����������������������������(��1��#�����������������#�
1��� �� �������#� ��������� 1������ ��� ��������� 1���� �������� ���� ��� ��(� ����� �1��
�����#�����,������*����������,������������3�)������������������������������
����������� ���� �1������ ��� ��� ��������� *������ ������ ,��� ������������� 1�����
*�����6�������� ������3�8����1�����*�����������*���*������ ����� ����������
������ ���� �������������� �,� *������ ������� ���� ��� �����#�� ��� ����� ���
5*�����*������,�����3�)�1��������1���������������������������*��������3�
�
������������
�
3%4� ����������5� �!��#����6 !$������"� ��)�5����!��� �!��(��!����-�
�
3*4� ����� ���� )�'�)�� (�� )�#�))��� ��� ���� �� ��)�!� �!�� 0�"!$� 2��'��� �;	�

���� �����#�)�5�!� ��)�� �!-�
�
�
� � �
�

Page 4



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

31 JANUARY 2013 

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR 

KEY DECISION ?   NO 
 

1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report identifies and evaluates the performance of the Internal Audit 
Section and includes details of any issues arising from the actual work 
undertaken during the period 1 November 2012 to 31 December 2013. There 
are four items of note concerning audit work undertaken that are brought to 
the attention of the Members for this period and these are identified in order 
of risk at Section 2.2. 

 
2.0  BACKGROUND AND AUDIT OUTPUT 

2.1. Internal Audit recently introduced a more effective reporting mechanism for 
Members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee that summarises 
audit work completed and identifies issues raised on a more timely monthly 
basis. This report supports the revised arrangements by focussing on the 
following: 

 
• Any items of note arising from audit work conducted,  
• Any issues arising that require actions to be taken by Members, 
• Performance information relating to the Internal Audit Service, 
• Developments being undertaken to improve the effectiveness of the 

Internal Audit Service.  
 
The information contained within this report is for the period 1 November 2012 
to 31 December 2013. 

 
2.2. Items of Note  
 
2.2.a Adult Social Services: Appointeeships 
 

An audit was undertaken in the period to review the adequacy of the controls 
in the management of income from welfare benefits on behalf of people who 
use adult social services.  The review concentrated on the more complex 
cases managed by the Adult Social Services Department, Financial 
Protection Team (as opposed to the more routine cases handled by the 
Personal Finance Unit, Finance Department).  The review resulted in an audit 
opinion of one star, as four high priority, and seven medium priority 
recommendations were generated.  The implementation of many of the 
recommendations will be in parallel with those resulting from the audit of the 
Court of Protection system (also managed by the Financial Protection Team) 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



– particularly those relating to the documentation and standardisation of 
procedures.  As with the Court of Protection audit, the response of the 
Department has been very positive, and indications are that the 
recommendations will be implemented within the agreed timescale.  The 
results of the forthcoming follow-up audit work will be reported to this 
Committee. 

 
2.2.b. CYPD: Leaving Care 
 

An audit was undertaken in the period to review the adequacy of the controls 
in the management of the leaving care process for looked-after children.  This 
service encompasses the payment of First Home Grants to young people 
leaving the care system, and provides advice and support to care leavers in 
their transition to adult independence. 
 
The audit generated an audit opinion of one star, as two high and two 
medium priority recommendations were made.  One of the high priority 
recommendations in particular, relating to compliance with legislation, could 
be particularly significant in its impact, and we have advised the department 
that a decision should be taken as a matter of urgency, so as to ensure that 
this risk is mitigated.  The results of the forthcoming follow-up audit work, 
scheduled for March 2013, will be reported to this Committee. 

 
2.2.c Adult Social Services Personal Budgets 
 
 Work is currently ongoing to determine progress made by the department to 

implement actions agreed following the audit of Personal Budgets. Members 
will recall that an update was provided to this Committee in November 2012 
by the Chief Officer for the department following some concerns raised by 
Internal Audit.  

 
2.2.d Information Governance 
 
 The Information Assurance Policy, referred to in the November 2012 Internal 
 Audit Update report is scheduled to be presented to Cabinet early in the new 
  year. We are advised that progress on implementing the audit 
 recommendations relating  to Information Assurance and Governance will 
 take place following this. We will continue to monitor the situation and 
 report the findings and any actions required to this Committee.   
 
2.2.e Adult Social Services: Bad Debts 
 

A project is ongoing to review the situation in respect of uncollected income in 
the Department of Adult Social Services.  A multi-disciplinary team has been 
configured to look at a range of issues, including evaluation of a range of 
recovery, legal and write-off actions; and an Internal Audit review of the 
processes for charging, collection and recovery of uncollected income. The 
Internal Audit element of the review is expected to result in a range of 
recommendations suggesting how the income processes can be improved so 
as to limit the Department’s exposure to non-collection.  An interim Internal 

Page 6



Audit report is being prepared for the end of January, detailing emerging 
findings of this element of the work. 

   
2.3 Internal Audit Performance Indicators 
 
2.3.a The Service constantly evaluates and measures the effectiveness of its 

performance in terms of both quality and productivity by means of a number 
of performance indicators in key areas as identified below. These include 
delivery of the annual Internal Audit Plan and ensuring that all of the audits 
identified in the plan are completed on schedule. This is particularly important 
at the present time as the requirement for Internal Audit involvement in a 
number of important corporate initiatives has increased dramatically.  

 
 

IA Performance Indicator 
 

 
Target (%) 

 
Actual (%) 

 
Delivery of Internal Audit Plan. 
 

 
62 

  
 60 

Percentage of High priority recommendations 
agreed with clients. 
 

100 
 
 

100 

Percentage of returned client survey forms 
indicating satisfaction with the Internal Audit 
service. 
 

80 95 

Internal audit reports issued within 10 days of 
the completion of fieldwork. 
 

100 93 

 
2.3.b There are currently no issues arising. 
 
2.4 Internal Audit Developments 
 
2.4.a Good progress is being made to deliver the Internal Audit Improvement Plan 

which is designed to drive a number of developments and initiatives aimed at 
increasing the overall efficiency and effectiveness of systems of internal audit 
across the Council.  

 
2.4.b Actions undertaken to date include: 
 

• Implementation of a revised audit report format incorporating opinions on 
systems, compliance and organisational impact.  

• Introduction of Letter of Engagement for all audits 
• Development of a Training and Development Program for audit staff 
• Developed reporting arrangements for Chief Officers and Members 
• Ongoing development of a three year audit plan  
• Improved engagement with Chief Officers and managers 
• Enhanced escalation procedures for audit issues identified 
• Improved reporting arrangements for ARMC members  
 

Page 7



2.4.c The first UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards come into force in April 
2013 and all local authorities will be required to implement the new standards 
from April and report on compliance with these by June 2014. Internal Audit 
plan to undertake a self assessment exercise against the standards over the 
coming months and report the findings and any required actions to this 
Committee in June 2013. 

 
2.4.d Discussions have recently taken place with the Chair of this Committee 

regarding proposals for the delivery of the Internal Audit service and further 
talks are scheduled as requested by Members at the previous meeting of this 
Committee. 

 
3.0  RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Appropriate actions are not taken by officers and Members in response to the 
identification of risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives. 

 
3.2 Potential failure of the Audit and Risk Management Committee to comply with 

best professional practice and thereby not function in an efficient and effective 
manner. 

 
4.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options considered. 
 
5.0  CONSULTATION 

5.1 Members of this Committee are consulted throughout the process of 
delivering the Internal Audit Plan and the content of this regular routine report. 

 
6.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
8.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 

10.0  CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0  PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 

Page 8



12.0  RECOMMENDATIONS 

12.1  That the report be noted. 
 
13.0  REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 To provide the Members with assurance that the Council is taking appropriate 
measures to comply with statutory requirements to provide an adequate and 
effective internal audit service. 

 
13.2 To ensure that risks to the Council are managed effectively. 
 
13.3 To ensure that the Council complies with best practice guidance identified in 

the CIPFA publication ‘A Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees’. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mark P. Niblock 
  Acting Chief Internal Auditor 
  telephone:  0151 666 3432 
  email:   markniblock@wirral.gov.uk  
APPENDICES 
 
Internal Audit Improvement Plan 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Audit and Risk Management Committee  

 

Routine report presented 

to all meetings of this 

Committee. 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                           
 

Equality Impact Toolkit  
 
 

Section 1:  Your details 
 
Council officer:  M P Niblock 
 
Email address:  markniblock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service:  Acting Chief Internal Auditor   
 
Chief Officer:  Interim Director of Finance  
 
Department:   Finance Department 
 
Date:    08/01/13 
 

 
 

 
Section 2: What Council function / proposal is being assessed?  
 
   INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT  
 
 
 

 
Section 2b: Is this EIA being submitted to Cabinet or Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee?  
 
Yes If ‘yes’ please state which meeting and what date  
 
 Audit and Risk Management Committee – 22 January 2013 
 
 And please add hyperlink to your published EIA on the   Council’s 

website 
 
   …………………………………………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Section 3: Will the Council function / proposal affect equality in ……? (please 
tick relevant boxes) 

 
¨ Services 
 
¨ The workforce 
 
¨ Communities 
 
¨ Other (please state) 
 
If you have ticked one or more of above, please go to section 4. 
 
ý None (please stop here and email this form to your Chief Officer who needs to 
 email it to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk for publishing) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 4: Within the Equality Duty 2010, there are 3 legal requirements. 
            Will the Council function / proposal support the way the Council                                

                       …………………(please tick relevant boxes) 
 
¨ Eliminates unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
 
¨ Advances equality of opportunity 
 
¨ Fosters good relations between groups of people 
 
If you have ticked one or more of above, please go to section 5. 
 
¨ None (please stop here and email this form to your Chief Officer who needs to 
 email it to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk for publishing) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 12



Section 5: Will the function / proposal have a positive or negative impact on 
any   of the protected groups (race, gender, disability, gender 
reassignment, age, pregnancy and maternity, religion and belief, 
sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnership)? 

 
 You may also want to consider socio-economic status of 

individuals. 
 
Please list in the table below and include actions required to mitigate any negative 
impact. 
 

 
Protected 

characteristic 

 
Positive or 
negative 
impact 

 
Action 

required to 
mitigate any 
negative 
impact 

 
Lead 
person 

 
Timescale 

 
Resource 

implications 

 
 
 
 

 
 

    

 
 
 
 

 
 

    

 
 
 
 

 
 

    

 
 

 
Section 5a: Where and how will the above actions be monitored? 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Section 5b: If you think there is no negative impact, what is your reasoning 

behind this? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 13



Section 6:  What research / data / information have you used in support of 
this process? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Section 7: Are you intending to carry out any consultation with regard to this 

Council function / policy? 
 
Yes / No – (please delete as appropriate) 
 
If ‘yes’ please continue to section 8.  
 
If ‘no’ please state your reason(s) why:  
 
 
 
(please stop here and email this form to your Chief Officer who needs to email it to 
equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk for publishing) 
 
 
 

Section 8: How will consultation take place?  
                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
Before you complete your consultation, please email your ‘incomplete’ EIA to 
equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk via your Chief Officer in order for the Council to ensure it is 
meeting it’s legal requirements. The EIA will be published with a note saying we are 
awaiting outcomes from a consultation exercise. 
 
Once you have completed your consultation, please review your actions in section 5.  Then   
email this form to your Chief Officer who needs to email it to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk 
for re-publishing. 
  
 
 
 

Page 14



Wirral Council 

Certification work report 2011/12 

9 January 2013 
 
 

  

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



1� Executive Summary 1�
2� Results of our certification work 4�
 
 
Appendices 
A� Approach and context to certification 6�
B� Details of claims and returns certified for 2011-12 8�
C� Action plan 9�
 

Contents 

Page 16



Wirral Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

1

Introduction 
1.1 Grant Thornton, as the Council’s auditors and acting as agents of the Audit Commission, is 

required to certify the claims submitted by the Council.  This certification typically takes 
place some 6-12 months after the claim period and represents a final but important part of 
the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to funding. 

1.2 We have certified 3 claims and returns for the financial year 2011/12 relating to expenditure 
of £246 million. 

1.3 This report summarises our overall assessment of the Council’s management arrangements 
in respect of the certification process and draws attention to significant matters in relation to 
individual claims.  

Approach and context to certification 
1.4 We provide a certificate on the accuracy of grant claims and returns to various government 

departments and other agencies.  Arrangements for certification are prescribed by the Audit 
Commission, which agrees the scope of the work with each relevant government 
department or agency, and issues auditors with a Certification Instruction (CI) for each 
specific claim or return. 

1.5 Appendix A sets out an overview of the approach to certification work, the roles and 
responsibilities of the various parties involved and the scope of the work we perform. 

Key messages 
1.6 It should be noted that all work relating to the certification of the Teachers Pensions return 

and National Non Domestic Rates return  in this certification report was completed by the 
Audit Commission prior to our appointment as the Council's auditors. The findings set out 
in this report therefore represent some of the results of your previous auditors' work. 

1.7 A summary of all claims and returns subject to certification and details of our certification 
fee is provided at Appendix B. The key messages from our review are summarised in 
Exhibit One, and set out in detail in the next section of the report. 

1 Executive Summary 

Arrangements for 
certification for claims 
and returns: 
• below £125,000 - 

no certification 
• above £125,000 

and below 
£500,000 - 
agreement to 
underlying records 

• over £500,000 - 
agreement to 
underlying records 
and assessment of 
control 
environment.  
Where full reliance 
cannot be placed, 
detailed testing.

Page 17



Wirral Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

2

Exhibit One:  Summary of Council performance 
Aspect of 
certification 
arrangements 

Key Message 

Submission and 
certification 

All claims were submitted on time for certification and all claims 
were certified within the required deadline. 
For the Housing Benefit Claim the Authority made manual 
amendments to the claim. These adjustments were as a result of 
an external 'Benefit Maximisation review'. The Council officers 
had not carried out their own verification checks on the 
adjustments to the claim.  Therefore we were unable to certify the 
effectiveness of the arrangements in place by the authority to 
satisfy itself that the Chief Financial Officer's certificate should be 
given.    

Accuracy of claim 
forms submitted to 
the auditor 
Amendments and 
qualifications 

All three claims submitted to us required amendment. A 
qualification letter was submitted for the Housing Benefit Claim.  
The main adjustments to the Housing Benefit claim were for  
manual adjustments proposed by an external consultant. As these 
had not been checked by Wirral MBC staff this led to additional 
work and wording in the Qualification Letter.  
Backdating errors were reduced compared to the prior year, but 
continue to be an issue for further consideration  by the Wirral 
MBC Benefits Quality Assurance team. Every error we found in 
this area related to cases with underlying liability for the period 
incorrectly marked as 'backdated'. 
We found a number of other errors in our detailed case testing 
which were extrapolated, these are set out in detail in the 
Qualification Letter. 

Supporting working 
papers 

Supporting working papers for the majority of claims and returns 
were good, which enabled certification within the deadlines. 
Quality assurance arrangements could be improved on the 
Teachers Pensions claim to ensure the claim form is checked for 
errors prior to submission for certification. 
Support from Housing Benefit staff  and local system access 
combined with timely receipt of reports and uprating evidence 
enabled the certification process to proceed in an efficient 
manner. 
 

 
The way forward 

1.8 We have made a number of recommendations to address the key messages above and other 
findings arising from our certification work at Appendix C. 

1.9 Implementation of the agreed recommendations will assist the Council in compiling 
accurate and timely claims for certification.  This will reduce the risk of penalties for late 
submission, potential repayment of grant and additional fees.  

Page 18



Wirral Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

3

Acknowledgements 
1.10 We would like to take this opportunity to thank the grant claim co-ordinator and Council 

officers for their assistance and co-operation during the course of the certification process. 
Grant Thornton UK  LLP 

 9 January 2013 

Page 19



Wirral Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

4

Key messages 
2.1 We have certified 3 claims and returns for the financial year 2011/12 relating to expenditure 

of £ 246 million. 
2.2 The Council's performance in preparing claims and returns is summarised in Exhibit Two. 

Exhibit Two:  Performance against key certification targets 
 

Performance measure Target Achievement in 
2011-12 

Achievement 
in 2010-11 

Direction 
of travel 

  No. % No. %  
Total claims/returns  3  10   

Number of claims 
submitted on time 

100% 3 100 9 90 � 

Number of claims 
certified on time 

100% 3 100 8 80 � 

Number of claims 
certified with 
amendment 

0% 3 100 8 80 � 

Number of claims 
certified with 
qualification 

0% 1 33 5 50 � 

 
2.3 This analysis of performance shows that: 

• There is an improvement on the number of claims submitted and certified on time 
and a reduction in the number of claims certified with qualification.  

• The nature of the Housing Benefit COUNT methodology and Certification 
Instruction BEN01 mean that amendments and a Qualification Letter are likely 
unless all system reconciliations and cases are correct. 

2.4 Details on the certification of all claims and returns are included at Appendix B.   
2.5 Where we have identified significant matters or opportunities for improvement in the 

compilation of claims and returns, these are summarised below and recommendations are 
included in the action plan at Appendix C.   

2 Results of our certification work 

Page 20



Wirral Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

5

2.6 We charged a total fee of £18,057 for the certification of claims and returns in 2011-12. In 
addition, your previous auditors the Audit Commission, charged a total fee of £57,156. 
Details of fees charged for specific claims and returns are included at Appendix B.   

Significant findings 
2.7 The following significant findings were identified in relation to the management 

arrangements and certification of individual grant claims and returns: 
Grants co-ordination 

2.8 No significant issues identified with Grants co-ordination. 
Compilation procedures 

2.9 No significant issues identified although there is scope for improvement within the quality 
assurance procedures on the Teacher Pensions claim.  

 
2.10 Certification of Housing Benefit BEN01   

• The classification of backdated claims continues to be an area where errors are 
identified. The volume of errors decreased compared to 2010-11 but there is still scope 
for further improvement. 

• The use of external consultants to propose manual adjustments, which were not 
checked by benefits staff due to the timing of the claim submission and certification 
timetable, resulted in additional work and the requirement to raise the issue for 
Department for Work and Pensions consideration via the qualification letter. 

• The two main areas where errors affecting subsidy were found were minor errors in 
income calculations not matching information provided and in classification of 
overpayments, particularly where there was no underlying liability and so the 
overpayment should be technical overpayment. 

• There were a number of minor errors that did not impact subsidy that benefits staff 
should be aware of in considering future quality assurance arrangements, including 
household composition information not matching between the Council Tax and 
Housing Benefit systems, and incorrect Child Benefit being recorded.  

Page 21



Wirral Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

6

Appendix A 

A Approach and context to certification 
Introduction 
 
In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice, we also act as agents 
for the Audit Commission in reviewing and providing a certificate on the accuracy of grant 
claims and returns to various government departments and other agencies. 
The Audit Commission agrees with the relevant grant paying body the work and level of 
testing which should be completed for each grant claim and return, and set this out in a 
grant Certification Instruction (CI).  Each programme of work is split into two parts, firstly 
an assessment of the control environment relating to the claim or return and secondly, a 
series of detailed tests. 
In summary the arrangements are: 

• for amounts claimed below £125,000 - no certification required 
• for amounts claimed above £125,000 but below £500,000 - work is limited to 

certifying that the claim agrees to underlying records of the Council 
• for amounts claimed over £500,000 - an assessment of the control environment 

and certifying that the claim agrees to underlying records of the Council.  Where 
reliance is not placed on the control environment, detailed testing is performed. 
 

Our certificate 
Following our work on each claim or return, we issue our certificate.  The wording of this 
depends on the level of work performed as set out above, stating either the claim or return 
is in accordance with the underlying records, or the claim or return is fairly stated and in 
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions.  Our certificate also states that the claim 
has been certified: 

• without qualification; 
• without qualification but with agreed amendments incorporated by the authority; or 
• with a qualification letter (with or without agreed amendments incorporated by the 

authority). 
 

Where a claim is qualified because the authority has not complied with the strict 
requirements set out in the certification instruction, there is a risk that grant-paying bodies 
will retain funding claimed by the authority or, claw back funding which has already been 
provided or has not been returned.  In addition, where claims or returns require amendment 
or are qualified, this increases the time taken to undertake this work, which impacts on the 
certification fee. 
 

 

Page 22



Wirral Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

7

Appendix A 

Certification fees 
Each year the Audit Commission sets a schedule of hourly rates for different levels of staff, 
for work relating to the certification of grant claims and returns.  When billing the Council 
for this work, we are required to use these rates.  They are shown in the table below. 

Role 2011/12 2010/11 

Engagement lead £325  £325  
Manager £180 £180 
Senior auditor £115 £115 
Other staff £85 £85 

Page 23



W
ir

ra
l C

o
u

n
ci

l
C

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 r
ep

o
rt

 2
01

1/
12

 
8

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
 

B
De

tail
s o

f c
laim

s a
nd

 re
tur

ns 
cer

tifi
ed 

for
 20

11-
12 

Cla
im

 or
 re

tur
n 

Va
lue

 (£
) 

Am
en

de
d

? 
Am

en
dm

en
t 

Am
ou

nt 
(£

) 
Qu

ali
fie

d
? 

Fe
e  

201
0/

11 
(£

) 

Au
dit

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
 

Fe
e 2

011
/12

  
(£

) 

Gr
an

t 
Th

orn
ton

 
Fe

e 2
011

/12
  

(£
) 

To
tal

 Fe
e  

201
1/1

2 
(£

) 

Ho
usi

ng 
and

 co
un

cil 
tax

 be
nef

it s
che

me
 

165
,67

8,6
24 

Ye
s 

165
,71

2 
Ye

s 
52,

152
 

44,
437

 
17,

292
 

61,
729

 

Na
tio

nal
 no

n-
do

me
stic

 rat
es 

ret
urn

 
61,

500
,41

5 
Ye

s 
-1 

No
 

5,1
21 

7,7
25 

 
7,7

25 

Te
ach

ers
’ pe

nsi
on

s 
ret

urn
 

19,
741

,26
0 

Ye
s 

-61
7 

No
 

3,0
60 

4,3
19 

 
4.3

19 

Re
po

rtin
g t

o t
ho

se 
cha

rge
d w

ith
 

Go
ver

nan
ce 

 
 

 
 

 
675

 
765

 
1,4

40 

To
tal

 
246

,92
0,2

99 
 

165
,09

4 
 

60,
333

 
57,

156
 

18,
057

 
75,

213
 

 

Page 24



W
ir

ra
l C

o
u

n
ci

l
C

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 r
ep

o
rt

 2
01

1/
12

 
9

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
 

C
Ac

tio
n p

lan
  

Cla
im

 or
 re

tur
n 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Pri

ori
ty 

(L
/M

/H
) 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
res

po
nse

 &
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n d
eta

ils 

Ho
usi

ng 
Be

nef
it 

BE
N0

1 
To

 en
abl

e e
ffe

ctiv
e S

151
 of

fice
r si

gni
ng 

of 
the

 
aut

ho
rity

 ce
rtif

ica
te, 

adj
ust

me
nts

 fro
m 

sys
tem

s, 
Qu

alit
y A

ssu
ran

ce 
and

 co
nsu

ltan
ts r

epo
rts

 sh
ou

ld 
be 

che
cke

d a
nd

 ve
rifi

ed 
by 

ben
efit

s st
aff

 pr
ior

 to
 

sub
mi

ssio
n o

f th
e c

laim
. 

H 
Ev

ery
 ef

for
t is

 m
ade

 to
 ad

dre
ss 

issu
es 

aris
ing

 fro
m 

the
 

pro
du

ctio
n o

f sy
ste

m 
rep

ort
s d

uri
ng 

the
 4 w

eek
 pe

rio
d 

bef
ore

 cla
im

 su
bm

issi
on

 to
 m

inim
ise

 th
e n

um
ber

 of
 

adj
ust

me
nts

 po
st s

ub
mi

ssio
n .H

isto
rica

lly 
int

erv
ent

ion
 ha

s 
tak

en 
pri

or 
to 

the
 pr

od
uct

ion
 of

 th
ose

 re
po

rts
 an

d, s
ub

jec
t 

to 
res

ou
rce

s, t
his

 wi
ll c

on
tin

ue 
and

 pr
eve

nt 
the

 iss
ue 

hig
hlig

hte
d f

or 
201

1/1
2 f

rom
 re

cur
rin

g. 
Ho

usi
ng 

Be
nef

it 
BE

N0
1 

Er
ror

s in
 ba

ckd
atin

g a
nd

 in
com

e c
alc

ula
tio

n w
ere

 
rep

eat
ed 

fro
m 

pre
vio

us 
yea

rs. 
Th

e A
uth

ori
ty's

 
int

ern
al Q

ual
ity 

As
sur

anc
e s

ho
uld

 co
nti

nu
e to

 
foc

us 
on

 th
ese

 ar
eas

. 

M 
Er

ror
s re

lati
ng 

to 
bac

kda
tin

g d
o n

ot 
eff

ect
 a r

edu
ctio

n i
n 

Sub
sid

y b
ut 

the
 pr

ior
ity 

can
 ch

ang
e w

hils
t er

ror
s in

 in
com

e 
cal

cul
atio

n t
end

 to
 du

e to
 ind

ivid
ual

 da
ta e

ntr
y e

rro
rs. 

Th
ere

 
is n

o o
ver

arc
hin

g tr
ain

ing
 iss

ue 
spe

cifi
cal

ly l
ink

ed 
to 

bac
kda

tin
g o

f c
laim

s.. 
Th

e Q
A t

eam
 co

nti
nu

es 
to 

 fo
cus

 on
 

the
se 

are
as 

as 
an 

int
rin

sic
 pa

rt o
f th

eir 
wid

er 
QA

 tes
tin

g  
Ho

usi
ng 

Be
nef

it 
BE

N0
1 

Cla
ssif

ica
tio

n o
f te

chn
ica

l o
ver

pay
me

nts
 wh

ere
 

the
re 

is n
o u

nd
erly

ing
 lia

bili
ty, 

par
ticu

larl
y in

 
rela

tio
n t

o C
ou

nci
l T

ax 
ben

efit
, sh

ou
ld b

e r
evi

ew
ed 

pri
or 

to 
sub

mi
ssio

n o
f th

e c
laim

. 

M 
Th

is i
ssu

e h
as 

no
w b

een
 in

cor
po

rat
ed 

int
o t

he 
che

cki
ng 

reg
im

e  

Te
ach

ers
 Pe

nsi
on

s 
PE

N0
5 

En
sur

e th
ere

 is 
a ro

bu
st Q

ual
ity 

As
sur

anc
e p

roc
ess

 
to 

che
ck 

the
 cla

im
 fo

rm
 pr

ior
 to

 su
bm

issi
on

 fo
r 

cer
tifi

cat
ion

. 
M 

Ag
ree

d t
hat

 th
is w

ill b
e im

ple
me

nte
d o

n J
un

e 2
013

 pr
ior

 
to 

cla
im

 su
bm

issi
on

 by
 Co

mp
lian

ce 
Ma

nag
er 

and
 G

ran
t 

Co
-O

rdi
nat

or.
 

 

Page 25



© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 www.grant-thornton.co.uk 
 © 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership. 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently. 
 

No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from 
acting as a result of any material in this publication 

Page 26



 

Audit Progress Report 

 17 January 2013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Royal Liver Building 
Liverpool L3 1PS 
 
T +44 (0)151 224 7200 
F +44 (0)151 224 7201 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

Please be aware that we would wish to scan this opinion in whole or in part onto our electronic 
database to be available for our internal tax practice to access.  We might also wish to copy it to 
interested clients or their advisors on request. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



Audit Progress Report as at January 2013 

���������

Audit Progress Report 1�

Grant Thornton audit progress report for the Audit Committee .................................................... 2�

Fees ........................................................................................................................................................ 2�

Additional non-audit work ................................................................................................................. 2�

Independence of the Audit Team ..................................................................................................... 2�

Progress on the audit ........................................................................................................................... 2�

Grant Thornton workshops and reports ......................................................................................... 4�

Audit Commission reports ................................................................................................................. 4�

Audit Team: .......................................................................................................................................... 5�

 

 

 

 

Page 28



AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Fees 

2012/13 fees 

1 The fees for 2012/13 were determined by the Audit Commission and set out in the Audit 
Fee letter presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 26 November 2012: 
− audit of the financial statements including the whole of government accounts and value 

for money conclusion £211,680; 
− certification of grant claims and returns £42,600; 
− pension fund audit £36,882 
 

2 The fees are the Commission's best estimate of the fee required to carry out the audit where 
an audited body has no significant risks and has in place a sound control environment, 
materially accurate financial statements and good working papers are provided to deadlines. 
If any additional work is required we will discuss this with officers and fees will be reviewed 
and updated as necessary. 
 

2013/14 fees 

3  The Audit Commission is consulting on its 2013/14 proposed work programme and scales 
of fees and plans to publish the final work programme and scales of fees for 2013/14 in 
April 2013. There are no plans to make any changes to the work programme for 2013/14. 
The Audit Commission therefore proposes that scale audit fees are set at the same level as 
the fees applicable for 2012/13. Consultation closes on 8 February 2013. 
 

Additional non-audit work 

4 At the briefing of the Audit and Risk Management Committee  on 15 November 2012 I 
informed members that Grant Thornton Forensics Department had bid for and won a 
tender to carry out an independent review of Wirral Council’s BIG and ISUS schemes 
following issues raised by members of the public. I am required by International Auditing 
Standards to make you aware of this additional work and to consider if there are any 
independence or ethical issues arising from the work. In addition I am required to comply 
with rules put in place by the Audit Commission regarding the acceptance of such work. 
 

5 I can  confirm that this work has been considered by me and the Director of Audit Quality 
and Compliance at Grant Thornton and we have concluded that it does not pose any threat 
to our auditor independence as your external auditor. The review is being undertaken by 
Grant Thornton’s Forensic Team which has separate management and review procedures to 
the Audit Team. The Audit Team retains the independence required under the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 should a formal objection be placed. For your information: 
− The fee for the work was agreed at £39,000 
− The Grant Thornton lead for the Forensics Team is Rob Hampson 
− The Council lead is Peter Timmins 

 
Independence of the Audit Team 

6 There are no independence issues within the Audit Team that we currently need to bring to 
your attention.  

 
Progress on the audit 

7 The table below shows each element of our work and the expected outputs. As at January 
2013 all audit and certification work for the Council and Merseyside Pension Fund is on 

Page 29



AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 3

track or the start date is not yet due. From our planning work this year, there are no fraud or 
possible illegal acts that we have become aware of that we need to bring to your attention. 
Your previous auditors identified a number of significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in the Council's internal control and these and others have been the subject of 
reports to members by Council officers during 2012/13.  
 

8 Our Audit Plans will be completed following completion of our planning and interim work 
and will consider our approach to the audit of accounts and the risks raised by your previous 
auditors in the 2011/12 qualified value for money conclusion. 

 
Phase of 
work 

Timing Outputs Comments Progress 

Wirral 
Council 

    

Audit 
planning and 
interim audit 

November 
2012 to 
March 2013 

Audit plan The plan summarises 
the findings of our 
audit planning and 
our approach to the 
audit of the 
Council's accounts 
and VFM.  

On track.  

Final 
accounts 
audit 

June to 
September 
2013 

Report to 
those charged 
with 
governance. 
Opinion on 
the financial 
statements. 

This report will set 
out the findings of 
our accounts audit 
and VFM work for 
the consideration of 
those charged with 
governance. 

Not yet started 

VFM 
conclusion 

January to 
September 
2013 

Report to 
those charged 
with 
governance. 
Value for 
money 
conclusion. 

As above.  On track. 

Financial 
resilience 

January to 
September 
2013 

Financial 
resilience 
report  

Report summarising 
the outcome of our 
work. 

On track. 

Whole of 
government 
accounts 
(WGA) 

August - 
September 
2013 

Opinion on 
the WGA 
return 

This work will be 
completed alongside 
the accounts audit. 

Not yet started. 

Annual audit 
letter 

October 2013 Annual audit 
letter to the 
Council 

The letter will 
summarise the 
findings of all 
aspects of our work. 

Not yet started. 

Page 30



AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 4

Phase of 
work 

Timing Outputs Comments Progress 

Grant 
certification 

June to 
December 
2013 

Grant 
certification 
report 

A report 
summarising the 
findings of our grant 
certification work 

Not yet started. we 
are planning to 
certify two grants in 
2012/13 – Housing 
and Council Tax 
Benefit and ; 
National Non 
Domestic Rates 
 
 

Merseyside 
Pension 
Fund 

    

Audit 
planning and 
interim audit 

November 
2012 to 
March 2013 

Audit plan The plan summarises 
the findings of our 
audit planning and 
our approach to the 
audit of the Pension 
Fund's accounts 

On track 

Final 
accounts 
audit 

June to 
September 
2013 

Report to 
those charged 
with 
governance. 
Opinion on 
the Pension 
Fund 
statements. 

This report will set 
out the findings of 
our accounts audit 
work for the 
consideration of 
those charged with 
governance 

Not yet started 

 
Other work that informs our audit 

9 Questions and objections: we have received a number of questions from members of the 
public that we are taking into account in the normal course of our audit.  
 
LGA Improvement Board: Mike Thomas continues to attend the LGA Improvement 
Board at the request of the Council. 
 

Grant Thornton workshops and reports 

10 Joint accounts workshops being run by Grant Thornton and CIPFA for Council officers 
in Chester on 6 February 2013 and Manchester on 14 February 2013. 
 

11 'Towards a Tipping Point?' report: This report provides a summary of the key issues, 
trends and good practice that have emerged from our second national programme of 
financial health reviews. (December 2012). There is also a lunchtime webinar on 
Wednesday 30 January 2013 to present the summary findings of the financial health checks 
of English local authorities, the concept of a tipping point and any post-launch update. 

 
Audit Commission reports 

12 Auditing the accounts 2011/12: Quality and timeliness of local public bodies' financial 
reporting (13 December 2012) 

Page 31



AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 5

13 'Striking a balance' presents the Audit Commission’s findings from research undertaken 
during 2012 on the level of reserves that councils hold and on the decisions councils make 
relating to them (6 December 2012) 

14 Tough times 2012 - Councils’ responses to a challenging financial climate (21 November 
2012) 

15 Protecting the public purse 2012 - Fighting fraud against local government (8 November 
2012). 
 

Audit Team: 

Mike Thomas – Director,  Telephone M 0788 045 6173;  
Email mike.thomas@uk.gt.com  

Liz Temple-Murray – Manager,  Telephone M 07880 456 171;  
Email liz.m.temple-murray@uk.gt.com  

Caroline Davies – Manager, Merseyside Pension Fund Telephone M 07880 456 162   
Email caroline.davies@uk.gt.com  

 

 

Page 32



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
31 JANUARY 2013 
 

SUBJECT CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE 
MANAGEMENT 

WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 
REPORT OF INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER 

COUNCILLOR PHIL DAVIES 

KEY DECISION NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the key actions in relation to corporate risk and insurance 

management during 2013/14. It highlights those areas where Members will be 
involved and any key decisions which will need to be taken. Significant 
actions completed since the last report can be found in the appendix. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
2.1 Risk and insurance management comprises two significant areas of activity. 

One is the provision of advice and support to Members and officers in 
developing the corporate risk management framework and processes. The 
other is risk financing which incorporates insurance procurement, 
management of the Council’s internal Insurance Fund and claims 
management. 

 
2.2 In addition to day-to-day operations the service is responsible for major 

procurement exercises and improvement activities. This report focuses on the 
latter. 

 
2.3 The table below summarises key actions planned between now and the end 

of 2013/14. It highlights those areas in which Members will have an 
involvement and what form that will take. Future reports will focus on these 
issues. 

 
Category Action Date Member 

Involvement? 
Comments 

Risk 
financing 

Peer review of 
insurance 
arrangements for 
Sefton Council 

March No Members will be 
advised when 
project is 
complete. 

Risk 
financing 

Annual renewal of 
Casualty, Motor, 
Computer, 
Engineering and 
Foster Care policies 

March 
2013 

No Outcome of 
renewal 
negotiations will 
be reported to 
Members. 

Risk 
financing 

Procurement of 
Property, All Risks, 
Money, Fidelity 
Guarantee and 
Personal Accident / 
Business Travel 
policies 

May 
2013 

Yes Members to 
consider officer 
recommendations 
and options for 
reducing external 
premiums.  

Agenda Item 8

Page 33



Risk 
financing 

Report on funding 
requirements 

June 
2013 

Yes Conclusions of 
the external 
actuary will be 
reported to 
Members as part 
of the Insurance 
Fund Annual 
Report (below). 

Risk 
financing 

Insurance Fund 
Annual Report 

June 
2013 

Yes Members to 
consider 
recommendations 
on provisions and 
reserves. 

Risk 
financing 

Academy schools 
insurance 
procurement 

August 
2013 

No Outcome will be 
reported to 
Members. 

Risk 
financing 

Insurance Fund 
Budget 2014/15 

Nov 
2013 

Yes Members to 
agree Insurance 
Fund Budget and 
apportionment 
between schools 
and the General 
Fund. 

Risk 
financing 

Procurement of Motor 
and Engineering 
insurance and 
inspection contracts 

Jan 
2014 

Yes Members to 
consider officer 
recommendations 
and options for 
reducing external 
premiums. 

Risk 
management 

Determine risk 
appetite and the 
future objectives for 
risk management 

May 
2013 

Yes Member 
engagement 
session to be 
arranged. 

Risk 
management 

Roll out risk 
information element 
of Concerto (P2) 
across departments 

May 
2013 

No Progress will be 
reported to 
Members. 

Risk 
management 

Risk management 
training session 

Sept 
2013 

Yes Members will be 
invited to the 
session planned 
for 2 September. 

Risk 
management 

Review risk  
management 
framework and 
processes 

Dec 
2013 * 

Yes In relation to the 
framework for 
governing risk 
management and 
risk reporting 
structures. 

Risk 
management 

Draft new corporate 
risk management 
policy and strategy 

Dec 
2013 * 

Yes Proposed 
strategy and 
policy will be 
presented to 
Members’ for 
consideration. 

Risk 
management 

Identify the core 
competencies for 
Members and officers 

Dec 
2013 * 

Yes Consultation 
through Member 
Training Group. 

 
* Assumes project start date of April 2013 
 
 

Page 34



 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
3.1 No decisions are required in relation to this report. As such there are no risks 

or opportunities to report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 These are not applicable in respect of this monitoring report. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken with regard to this report. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The Academy schools initiative undertaken by the Risk & Insurance Team is 

continuing to generate income which offsets insurance administration costs.  
 
7.2 The Risk and Insurance team has sufficient capacity to deal with its current 

responsibilities. However there is uncertainty as to whether the additional 
work required as a result of the planned improvements to risk management 
arrangements could be delivered within existing staff resources. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
12.1 That the Corporate Risk and Insurance Management report be noted. 
 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1 Regular update reports are presented to this Committee on the work around 

Risk and Insurance which seek to support the Risk Management Strategy and 
maintain the successful management of the Insurance Fund. 

 
 

Page 35



 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mike Lane 
  Risk & Insurance Officer 
  telephone:  0151 666 3413 
  email:   mikelane@wirral.gov.uk 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL / SUBJECT HISTORY 
 
Council Meeting  Date 
Audit & Risk Management – Corporate Risk & 
Insurance Management 
Audit & Risk Management – Corporate Risk & 
Insurance Management 
Audit & Risk Management – Corporate Risk & 
Insurance Management 
Audit & Risk Management – Corporate Risk & 
Insurance Management 
Audit & Risk Management – Corporate Risk & 
Insurance Management 
Audit & Risk Management – Corporate Risk & 
Insurance Management 

29 November 2011 
 
1 February 2012 
 
13 March 2012 
 
14 June 2012 
 
19 September 2012 
 
26 November 2012 

 

Page 36



Appendix 
 
Principal Actions Completed – November 2012 to January 2013 
 
Insurance Management 
 

·  Individual charges for risk and insurance services in 2013/14 were produced 
for all schools which buy back cover as a traded service. 

·  A suite of information was produced for the Council’s insurance brokers to 
support the production of a tender document for the Property and Personal 
Accident / Business Travel policies. 

·  A settlement was agreed with the claimant in what was potentially the most 
costly liability claim ever brought against the Council. The settlement was 
significantly below expectations and will place the authority in a more 
favourable position when the Casualty policy is tendered in 2015. 

·  A Peer Review for Sefton Council began. This is aimed at assisting Sefton 
with improving its corporate arrangements for insurance procurement and 
management  

 
 
Risk Management 
 

·  Outstanding areas of functionality in relation to how risk information is 
captured and reported across the organisation have been addressed by 
Concerto. 

·  A register of programme level risks affecting the Council’s savings projects 
has been produced. 

·  Preparations have been made for incorporating consideration of risk and 
uncertainty into Member engagement sessions to take place in February. 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Internal Audit Update
	EIA

	5 Grant Thornton Certification Work Report 2011/2012
	6 Grant Thornton Audit Progress Report
	8 Insurance and Risk Management

